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December 18, 2019 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council and Citizens of the City of Citrus 
Heights:  

City staff is pleased to submit the City of Citrus Heights’ Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
(CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  The City of Citrus Heights has a long tradition 
of self-reliance. Strong financial policies and responsible fiscal management of taxpayer dollars 
have enabled the City to balance its budget for over 18 years. Our City is committed to continued 
strong fiscal stewardship, transparency, and accountability over taxpayer dollars. Working 
together, the City Council and City staff ensure our budget and financial policies reflect spending 
consistent with the community’s priorities.  
 
It is the policy of the City Council that a licensed certified public accountant conduct an annual 
audit at the end of each fiscal year and issue a complete set of audited financial statements.  The 
audit is conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the financial 
statements are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP).   
Responsibility for the accuracy of the data and the fairness of presentation, including all footnotes 
and disclosures, rests with the City.  City staff believes the data presented in this report is accurate 
in all material respects and all statements and disclosures necessary for the reader to obtain a 
thorough understanding of the City’s financial activities have been included.  Management of the 
City has established an internal control framework that is designed to both protect the City’s assets 
from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the 
City’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP.  Because the cost of a control should not 
exceed the benefits derived, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute assurance, 
that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. 

While traditionally addressed to the governing body of the City, this report is intended to provide 
relevant financial information to the citizens of the City of Citrus Heights, city staff, creditors, 
investors, and other concerned readers.  City staff encourages all readers to contact the Finance 
Division with any questions or comments concerning this report. 

The City’s financial statements have been audited by Lance, Soll & Lunghard, LLP, a firm of 
certified public accountants.  The goal of the independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance 
that the financial statements of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 are free of material 
misstatements.  The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting 
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the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used 
and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement 
presentation.   

Based upon the audit, the independent auditors concluded that there was reasonable basis for 
rendering an unmodified opinion, which states that the City’s financial statements for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP.  The independent 
auditor’s report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City was part of a broader, federally 
mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor agencies.  The 
standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to report not only 
on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited government’s internal 
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on internal controls and 
legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards.  These reports are available in 
the City’s separately issued Single Audit Reports. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A).  This letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in 
conjunction with the MD&A.  The City’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report 
of the independent auditors. 

Profile of the City of Citrus Heights 

The City of Citrus Heights operates under a Council-Manager form of government and provides 
municipal services that include public safety, public works, and community development.  This 
report includes all funds of the City of Citrus Heights. The MD&A continues to demonstrate our 
commitment to providing essential quality of life services, maintaining public safety, improving 
the City’s infrastructure including streets and roads, and growing our local economy while 
maintaining long-term financial stability. 

The City Council establishes annual budgets for the General Fund, Proprietary Funds, and Special 
Revenue Funds, except for certain Special Revenue Funds for which expenditures are controlled 
by grant funding or by assessments received.  Budgetary control is legally maintained at the fund 
level for these funds.  Department Directors submit budget requests to the City Manager.  The City 
Manager prepares an estimate of revenues and prepares recommendations for the following year’s 
budget.  The preliminary budget may or may not be amended by the City Council and is adopted 
by resolution by the City Council on or before June 30th each year in accordance with the City’s 
Municipal Code. 

The City of Citrus Heights was incorporated on January 1, 1997, as a general law city.  Citrus 
Heights was the first new city in Sacramento County in more than 50 years and was the largest 

ii
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city to incorporate in the State of California.  With a population of approximately 88,000 in a 14.2 
square-mile area, Citrus Heights is 98% developed, with two large commercial corridors and a 
well-established residential community. We attract a population of all ages, and have a higher 
percentage of millennials and retirees than other cities our size.  

The Citrus Heights City Council consists of five members, elected to four-year overlapping terms 
in district-based elections.  Council members must be residents of the City.  The positions of Mayor 
and Vice Mayor are chosen by the City Council through policy direction determined by the City 
Council.  The Mayor conducts the City Council meetings and represents the City on ceremonial 
occasions. 

The City Council serves as the policy board for the municipality.  As an elected Board of Directors, 
the City Council provides policy direction, establishes goals, and sets priorities for the City 
government.  In addition to serving as the policy makers for the community, the City Council also 
is responsible for numerous land use decisions within its borders, including the General Plan.  The 
City Council appoints the City Manager, City Attorney, and all members of advisory boards and 
commissions.  

In Citrus Heights, the total labor force is approximately 44,300.  Unemployment in Citrus Heights 
is at approximately 3.2%, which is below the current rate of unemployment for California (3.7%).  
The City of Citrus Heights is home to a diverse labor force, specializing in such occupations as 
sales, executive and managerial services, technical support, professional specialties, and other 
services. As the geographic center of the Greater Sacramento area, Citrus Heights offers residents 
and workforce member’s effective access to the region. Almost 90% of Citrus Heights’ workforce 
travels in from outside the City, creating a daytime population of over 30,000 jobs. Citrus Heights 
jobs are projected to grow by 6% in the next five years.   

Most of Citrus Heights’ commercial real estate is comprised of large retail and small office space. 
Citrus Heights has long been known as a retail mecca, but the current retail market is in a state of 
change. Consumers are relying less on brick and mortar stores now that online shopping is 
mainstream. Citrus Heights is home to one of the Sacramento area’s first regional shopping 
centers, Sunrise Mall. In its prime, Sunrise Mall served as the economic engine of the City and the 
community’s central gathering place. With the addition of other regional malls and a shift toward 
online shopping, Sunrise Mall has experienced immense fall off in economic impact — resulting 
in a decline of almost 50% since 2006. In 2019, City Council directed staff to embark on a specific 
plan process for Sunrise Mall. This plan will engage each of the five owners of the 100-acre mall 
site, stakeholders, and the community, to work together on a new vision for Sunrise Mall. Through 
zoning, visioning, and entitling, Sunrise Mall will move away from being a commercial center and 
transform into a place where people can shop, work, live, and play.  Citrus Heights is a City that 
takes charge of its own future. By undertaking this process, we are encouraging continued growth 
and prosperity for our commercial business community. In addition to fostering in a new era for 
Sunrise Mall, the City also works hard to support our small businesses. There are 2,165 businesses 

iii
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in Citrus Heights, and 67% of those have less than 10 employees. Many of our small businesses 
are supported by three business districts: Sunrise MarketPlace, Auburn Blvd Business Association, 
and Antelope Crossing Business Association.  

Budget Initiatives 

The City of Citrus Heights has developed broad policy direction through the development of 
budget strategies that establish long-term policy guidance for conducting the City’s financial 
activities. Citrus Heights has a long tradition of self-reliance and local control with excellent 
quality of life services our residents expect and deserve.  The City Council has established these 
policies to meet the following strategic objectives: 

1. Strategic Focus – The City’s financial management should be strategic, reflecting the 
Council’s and the community’s priorities for service while providing resources that 
realistically fund routine operations. Most importantly, we strive to maintain essential 
services reflective of our community’s values and engage in continued fiscally responsible 
planning amid state mandates and takeaways. 

2. Fiscal Control and Accountability – The City’s financial activities should be fiscally 
sound and accountable to the City Council through the City Manager. It is our intent to 
maintain local control over local funds for our local needs in a fiscally prudent manner that 
addresses the community’s priorities. 

3. Clarity – The City’s financial planning and reporting should be clear and easy to 
understand so that all participants, the City Council, the community, and staff can 
productively participate in making good decisions. Our intent is to keep local government 
transparent and accountable, which includes our community’s ability to engage with our 
financial information. 

4. Long-Term Planning – The City of Citrus Heights has always taken charge of its own 
future. We became a city by intent, establishing our own police department and being 
fiscally responsible, and we have big plans for our future. The City’s financial planning 
should emphasize multi-year horizons to promote long-term planning of resource uses. 
However, underfunded state mandates and money grabs threaten Citrus Heights’ long-term 
financial stability. We have always engaged in long-term and comprehensive financial 
planning to ensure that the City can keep its budget balanced while preserving local control 
and essential services such as public safety and street maintenance in Citrus Heights. 

5. Flexible and Cost Effective Responses – The City’s financial management practices 
should encourage a mission-driven organization that responds quickly and 
straightforwardly to community demands.  The City’s management should flexibly 
respond to opportunities for better service, should proactively manage revenues, and should 
cost-effectively manage ongoing operating costs.  We must maintain public safety, 

iv
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economic development, and local control to adequately address our community’s essential 
services and quality of life. 

6. Staffing Philosophy – The City has worked towards establishing a balance between City 
employees and contract staff to ensure the most efficient City operations. 

Financial Policies 

The City Council has developed policy parameters for the City’s fiscal management. Those fiscal 
policies address a number of issues including financial activity reporting, budgeting and financial 
planning, appropriation control, debt management, investments, fees and charges, purchasing, 
performance measures and competitive review, and reserves.  

Long-Term Financial Planning           

The City’s financial planning promotes long-term planning of its resources that is reflective of 
community priorities, essential services, and quality of life.  The ten-year financial model has 
served as the primary budget guidance tool since the City’s incorporation in 1997.  The model is 
adjusted annually to project future operating revenue and expenditures.  Modest increases in 
General Fund expenditures have been projected for the next ten years to fund essential services 
such as public safety.  Several factors directly affect the City’s General Fund revenue.  Since the 
City receives approximately 47.7% of its General Fund revenue from sales and use tax, it is 
especially susceptible to economic downturns and the changing retail economy.  In addition, the 
City is approximately 98% built out which results in fewer opportunities for revenue generating 
growth.  The City is projected to maintain a balanced General Fund by utilizing the General Fund 
Reserves through FY 2022-2023, when the City will start to receive its Property Tax revenue.  It 
is important to note that amid continued financial pressure caused by underfunded state mandates, 
future state and federal decisions, and regardless of the state or national economy, City staff will 
continue to identify opportunities to enhance locally controlled funding to maintain long-term 
fiscal stability and viability, and maintain essential services. It is a testament to the resolve and 
responsibility of City leadership that the City has been able to provide excellent quality of life 
services to its residents without property taxes for this long — much longer than originally 
anticipated. 

Current Economic Conditions and Outlook 

The City’s economic development efforts and implementation of the City’s financial policies help 
to promote Citrus Heights’ long-term fiscal stability.  Since incorporation in 1997, at the direction 
of Council, staff has conducted a systematic review of operations, resulting in some cases in the 
transition from contract service to an in-house operational model; in other instances, a 
renegotiation of existing service contracts; and in other instances, retention of the contract 
operational model with a different service provider.  These operational analyses and reforms are 
intended to promote long-term savings to the City and ensure long-term stability.  As part of this 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Citrus Heights, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Citrus Heights, 
California, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of 
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted 
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the 
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions.

 
 
 

  
 

 

 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2151 River Plaza Dr., Suite 150 Sacramento , CA 95833 Phone: 916.503.9691 



To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Citrus Heights, California

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Citrus Heights, California, as of June 30, 
2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedules for the general fund, HOME program 
grants special revenue fund, CBDG grants special revenue fund and the housing agency fund, the 
schedule of proportionate share of the net pension liability – cost sharing plan, the schedule of plan 
contributions – cost sharing plan, the schedule of changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios, and 
the schedule of OPEB contributions be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such 
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the 
basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied 
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion 
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City’s basic financial statements. The introductory section, combining and individual 
nonmajor fund financial statements, budgetary schedules, statistical section and schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards, are presented 
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of 
expenditures of federal awards are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. 
The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial 
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or 
to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and 
individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules and the schedule of expenditures of federal 
awards are fairly stated, in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the 
audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on them.

2



 
To the Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
City of Citrus Heights, California 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated  
December 18, 2019 on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our 
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and 
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control 
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on 
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 
 

 
Sacramento, California 
December 18, 2019 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
This section provides a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of 
Citrus Heights (City) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. It should be read in conjunction with 
the accompanying transmittal letter and basic financial statements. 
 
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 
 
♦ As of June 30, 2019, total assets and deferred outflows of the City exceeded its liabilities and 

deferred inflows by $352,851,211 (net position). The portion of net position that may be used 
to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors (unrestricted net 
position) is $2,189,050.  The portion of net position that is restricted and may only be used for 
specific purposes is $13,375,587.  The remaining $337,286,574 is invested in capital assets. 

 
♦ As of June 30, 2019, the City’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances 

of $22,955,233.  Of the combined fund balances, 31.2% ($7.159 million) is available to meet 
the City’s current and future needs (committed, assigned and unassigned balances).  

 
 As of June 30, 2019, the committed amount in the General Fund of $4,561,978 represents 

amounts committed for insurance, postemployment healthcare benefits and a Council 
commitment for economic uncertainties and anticipated future short-term structural deficits 
(i.e. revenue stabilization).  See Note 8. 

 
♦ Under the revenue neutrality agreement with the County of Sacramento, $5,593,319 of 

property tax revenue was retained by the County as payment under the agreement. These 
payments are expected to continue through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. 

 
♦ Capital assets, net of depreciation, decreased to $337,286,574 from $344,888,713 which 

includes $297,255,170 of infrastructure per the requirements of GASB 34.  
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is in three major parts: 
 
1) Introductory section, which includes the Transmittal Letter and general information; 
 
2) Financial section, which includes the Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Basic 

Financial Statements, which include the Government-wide and the Fund Financial Statements 
along with the notes to these financial statements and Combining and Individual Fund 
Financial Statements and Schedules; and, 

 
3) Statistical section, which includes detailed information as a context for understanding what 

the information in the financial statements and footnotes says about the City's overall financial 
health. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued 
 
The Basic Financial Statements 
 
The Basic Financial Statements are comprised of the Government-wide Financial Statements and 
the Fund Financial Statements. These two sets of financial statements provide two different views 
of the City’s financial activities and financial position. 
 
The Government-wide Financial Statements 
 
The Government-wide Financial Statements provide a broad overview of the City’s activities as a 
whole and are comprised of the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The 
Statement of Net Position provides information about the financial position of the City as a whole, 
including all of its capital assets and long-term liabilities on the full accrual basis, similar to that 
used by corporations. The Statement of Activities provides information about all the City’s 
revenues and expenses, also on the full accrual basis, with the emphasis on measuring net revenues 
or expenses of each of the City’s programs. The Statement of Activities explains in detail the 
change in net position for the year. 
 
All of the City’s activities are grouped into Governmental Activities and Business-type activities, 
as explained below. All the amounts in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of 
Activities are separated into Governmental Activities and Business-type Activities in order to 
provide a summary of these two activities of the City as a whole. 
 
♦ Governmental activities – All of the City’s basic services are considered to be governmental 

activities, including general government, community development, economic development, 
public safety, animal control, engineering, community events, public improvements, planning 
and zoning, building inspections, and general administration. These services are supported by 
general City revenues such as taxes and by specific program revenues such as user fees.  

 
♦ Business-type activities – All of the City’s enterprise activities are reported here.  The City’s 

only Business-type activity fund is Solid Waste. Unlike governmental services, this service is 
supported by charges paid by users based on the amount of the service they use. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
 
A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have 
been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City, like other state and local 
governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related 
legal requirements. All of the funds of the City can be divided into two categories: governmental 
funds and proprietary funds. 
 
Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions 
reported as governmental activities in the Government-wide Financial Statements. However, 
unlike the Government-wide Financial Statements, Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on balances of 
spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in 
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 
 
Because the focus of the Governmental Fund Financial Statements is narrower than that of the 
Government-wide Financial Statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for 
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the 
Government-wide Financial Statement. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term 
impact of the government’s near-term financial decisions. Both the governmental fund balance 
sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund 
balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and 
governmental activities. The Governmental Fund Financial Statements provide detailed 
information about each of the City’s most significant funds, called major funds. The concept of 
major funds, and the determination of which are major funds, was established by GASB Statement 
34 and replaces the concept of combining like funds and presenting them as one total. Instead, 
each major fund is presented individually, with all nonmajor funds summarized and presented only 
in a single column. Subordinate schedules present the detail of these nonmajor funds. Major funds 
present the major activities of the City for the year, and may change from year to year as a result 
of changes in the pattern of the City’s activities. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City’s major funds include the General Fund, Home 
Program Grants Special Revenue Fund, Housing Agency Special Revenue Fund, Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Special Revenue Fund, and Streets Capital Projects Fund. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City adopted annual appropriated budgets for the 
General Fund and Special Revenue funds. 
 
Proprietary funds. The City maintains one Enterprise-type proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the Government-wide 
Financial Statements. The City uses an enterprise fund to account for Solid Waste activities.  
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
OVERVIEW OF THE COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT, Continued 
 
Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the Government-wide Financial 
Statements, only in more detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate 
information for the Solid Waste operation. 
 
Notes to the Basic Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information that is 
essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the Government-wide and Fund Financial 
Statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on pages 33-67 of this report. 
Required Supplementary Information follows the notes on page 69. 
 
Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules. The combining 
statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented 
immediately following the notes to the financial statements and required supplementary 
information. Combining and individual fund statements can be found on pages 79-134 of this 
report. 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 
 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position. 
 
In the case of the City, assets exceeded liabilities by $352,851,211 as of June 30, 2019. Under the 
revenue neutrality settlement, the County retains the annual property tax for the first twenty-five 
years after the City’s incorporation through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2022. For the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019, the County retained $5,593,319 of property taxes. 
 
The Summary of Net Position as of June 30, 2019, and 2018, follows:  
 

 
 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

Current and other assets 32,421,158$   32,286,485$   577,069$    409,404$    32,998,227$   32,695,889$   

Capital assets 336,912,872 344,507,138 373,702 381,575 337,286,574 344,888,713 

Total Assets 369,334,030 376,793,623 950,771 790,979 370,284,801 377,584,602

Total Deferred Outflows 7,850,849 10,483,549 238,890 342,205 8,089,739     10,825,754   

Long-term liabilities 15,550,737 15,825,288 427,989 468,705 15,978,726 16,293,993

Other liabilities 8,740,115 8,001,273 59,838 33,345 8,799,953 8,034,618

Total Liabilities 24,290,852 23,826,561 487,827 502,050 24,778,679 24,328,611

Total Deferred Inflows 722,660 922,389 21,990 30,109 744,650        952,498        

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets 336,912,872 344,507,138 373,702 381,575 337,286,574 344,888,713

Restricted 13,375,587 16,266,052 -                 -                 13,375,587 16,266,052

Unrestricted 1,882,908 1,755,032 306,142 219,450 2,189,050 1,974,482
Total Net Position 352,171,367$ 362,528,222$ 679,844$    601,025$    352,851,211$ 363,129,247$ 

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitites Totals
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 

Restricted net position decreased by $2,890,465 due to a decrease in the receipt of restricted funds 
in a number of special revenue funds for road maintenance, transit services and various 
development activities.  Unrestricted net position can be used to finance day to day operations 
without constraints established by debt covenants or other legal requirements.  The City had 
$2,189,050 of unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2019, which is an increase of $214,568. 
While unrestricted net position is technically unrestricted, much of the amount is committed for a 
specific use as described in Note 8.   

The City maintains a commitment of fund balance in the General Fund, commonly called the 
General Fund Reserve. It is set at a maximum of $35 million at June 30, 2019, and the balance is 
currently $4.6 million.  The net position of business-type activities cannot be used to make up an 
unrestricted net position deficit in the governmental activities. The City generally can only use 
these assets to finance the continuing operations of the business-type activities. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
The change in net position for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, follows: 

 
 
Revenues 
 
The City’s total revenues for governmental and business-type activities were $51,087,400 for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2019.  Approximately 69% of the City’s key revenues are generated 
from four major sources.  

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Revenues:

Program revenues:

Charges for services 9,615,941$      7,946,857$      839,030$  798,838$    10,454,971$    8,745,695$      

Grants and contributions:

Operating 7,165,367 6,265,040 -              -                 7,165,367 6,265,040

Capital 7,101,580 1,483,643 -              -                 7,101,580 1,483,643

General revenues:

Property taxes

and assessments 339,571         758,653         -              -                 339,571 758,653

Sales and use taxes 12,542,158    15,653,986    -              -                 12,542,158 15,653,986

Utility users tax 2,739,888      2,932,236      -              -                 2,739,888 2,932,236

Other taxes 2,225,772      1,600,300      -              -                 2,225,772 1,600,300

Shared intergovernmental -

unrestricted 8,436,657      8,037,540      -              -                 8,436,657 8,037,540

Investment earnings (Losses) 32,181           254,162         49,255    3,450         81,436 257,612         

Total Revenues 50,199,115    44,932,417    888,285  802,288     51,087,400    45,734,705    

Expenses:
Governmental activities:

General government 6,909,949      6,106,559      -              -                 6,909,949 6,106,559

Public safety 24,025,017    21,698,139    -              -                 24,025,017 21,698,139

Public ways and facilities 21,730,069    24,395,900    -              -                 21,730,069 24,395,900

Culture and recreation 720,442         722,255         -              -                 720,442 722,255

Economic development 296,233         353,608         -              -                 296,233 353,608

Community enhancements 3,953,127      4,664,279      -              -                 3,953,127 4,664,279

Interest on long-term debt 70,962           -                 -              -                 70,962 0

Business-type activities:

Solid waste -                     -                     809,466  751,275     809,466 751,275

Total Expenses 57,705,799    57,940,740    809,466  751,275     58,515,265    58,692,015    

Excess of revenues over

expenditures before transfers (7,506,684)     (13,008,323)   78,819    51,013       (7,427,865)     (12,957,310)   

Transfers -                     -                     -              -                 -                     -                     

Change in Net Position (7,506,684)     (13,008,323)   78,819    51,013       (7,427,865)     (12,957,310)   

Restatement (2,850,171)     44,635           (2,850,171)     44,635           

Net position, beginning of year 362,528,222  375,491,910  601,025  550,012     363,129,247 376,041,922

NET POSITION, JUNE 30 352,171,367$  362,528,222$  679,844$  601,025$    352,851,211$  363,129,247$  

Governmental Activities Business-type Activitites Totals
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
The following discusses variances in key revenues from the prior fiscal year: 
 

1. Sales Tax - Annual receipts for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019 decreased 
$3,111,828 from the prior year. 
 

2. Shared Intergovernmental Revenues - Annual receipts for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2019 increased by $399,117 from the prior year.  This amount represents the state 
motor vehicle in-lieu tax. 
 

3. Grants and Contributions - Governmental Activities Operating - Governmental 
Activities operating grants and contributions were mainly from transit allocations from 
the Sacramento Area Council of Governments and street, road, and community 
enhancement grants that were for maintenance and operations as well as grant 
reimbursements for housing loans made during the year.  Revenues increased in 2019 
for public ways and facilities as project spending increased. 
 

4. Grants and Contributions - Governmental Activities Capital - The increase in 
capital revenues reflects several new capital projects in progress during the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2019.  Those projects included the Sunrise/Woodmore Streets Project, 
Auburn Blvd- Rusch Streets Project, Mariposa Streets Project, and the Electric 
Greenway Project. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Expenses 
 
Governmental and business-type activity expenses of the City for the year totaled $58,515,265. 
Governmental activity expenses totaled $57,705,799 or 98.6% of total expenses. Business-type 
activities expenses totaled $809,466 during the fiscal year. Public safety costs represented 41.6% 
of total governmental activities expenses and represented the largest single expense for 
governmental activities. 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The following table shows the cost of each of the City’s major programs and the net cost of the 
programs. The net cost reflects the financial burden that was placed on the City’s taxpayers by 
each of the programs. The total cost of services and the net cost of services for the fiscal years 
ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, were as follows: 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Total Cost Net Cost Total Cost Net Cost
of Services of Services of Services of Services

General government 6,909,949$      (4,687,720)$         6,106,559$      (4,829,203)$         
Public safety 24,025,017 (21,523,104) 21,698,139     (19,491,514)
Public ways and facilities 21,730,069 (6,208,340) 24,395,900     (14,064,851)
Culture and recreation 720,442 (666,759) 722,255          (264,133)
Economic development 296,233 (284,800) 353,608          (353,608)
Community enhancements 3,953,127 (381,226) 4,664,279       (3,241,891)
Interest on long-term debt 70,962 (70,962)               -                 -                     

TOTAL 57,705,799$    (33,822,911)$       57,940,740$    (42,245,200)$       

20182019
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Revenues by source for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, are as follows: 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
Business-type activities. The City’s net position for business-type activities increased by $78,819 
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019. The City has one business-type activity, which is Solid 
Waste Operations. The expenses and program revenues for the Solid Waste Operation for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2019, and 2018, are as follows: 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 
The revenues by source for the solid waste business-type activity for the fiscal years ended June 
30, 2019 and 2018 are as follows: 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued 
 

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds 
 
The City of Citrus Heights uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with 
finance-related legal requirements. The fund financial statements focus on individual parts of the 
City government, reporting the City’s operations in more detail than the government-wide 
financial statements. 
 

Governmental funds. The City’s governmental funds provide information on near-term inflows, 
outflows, and balances of spending resources. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, the City’s 
governmental funds reported combined fund balances of $22,955,233.   
 
The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City. At the fiscal year ended June 30, 2019, 
the General Fund’s fund balance totaled $6,530,528 of which $4,561,978 was committed for 
council approved projects.  Fund balance in the General Fund increased by $1,356,736 largely due 
to the loan receivable from the Housing Agency Fund not previously recorded. 
 
Proprietary funds. The City has one business-type activity, which is Solid Waste Operations.  
The Proprietary fund unrestricted net position increased $78,819 in the fiscal year ended June 30, 
2019. 
 
General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
 
The actual total revenues were approximately $208,123 less than the final budgeted amount. 
Taxes, and fines and forfeitures came in under budget; all other revenue categories exceeded the 
budget estimate. The largest favorable variance compared to the budget was in miscellaneous 
revenues $150,709. 
 
The actual total expenditures were approximately $332,786 less than the final budgeted amount 
due mainly to salary savings from vacant positions. 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS, Continued  
 
Capital Assets 
 
The City’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of June 
30, 2019 amounted to $337,286,574. This investment in capital assets includes land, art, 
construction in progress costs for road and other improvements, buildings and improvements, 
infrastructure, the City Hall and Utility Yard assets and machinery and equipment. 
 

 
  
 
The increase in land was mainly due to Right of Way (ROW) escrow charges and land acquisitions. 
The increase in construction in progress was mainly due to the ongoing construction of several 
major capital projects including the Sunrise/Woodmore Streets Project, Auburn Blvd/ Rusch 
Streets Project, Mariposa Streets Project, and the Electric Greenway Project. More detail of the 
capital assets and current activity can be found in the notes to the financial statements on Pages 47 
and 48. 
 
Long-term Debt 
 
The City’s long-term debt at June 30, 2019 totaled $15,978,726 and included a net pension liability 
of $14,025,594. More detail on the City’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 and 7 on page 
49, and Note 11 on pages 55-61. 
 
Economic Outlook 
 
The City maintains a multi-year forecasting model to project anticipated revenues and 
expenditures.  When the City incorporated in 1997, it anticipated that there would be a crossover 
period where expenditures would exceed revenues for the fiscal year due to the revenue neutrality 
settlement. The model predicts the crossover period will be through fiscal year 2022-2023, when 
the City will begin to receive property tax revenues that are currently being retained by Sacramento 
County as part of the revenue neutrality settlement. 
 
The City will review the outlook for revenues and expenditures as part of the mid-year budget 
update. 
 

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Land 15,218,758$       14,860,489$       -$                    -$                15,218,758$       14,860,489$       
Art 103,650              103,650              -                      -                  103,650              103,650              
Construction in progress 4,276,265           1,094,336           -                      -                  4,276,265           1,094,336           
Buildings and

improvements 18,544,025         18,975,142         -                      -                  18,544,025         18,975,142         
Infrastructure 296,881,468       307,262,031       373,702          381,575      297,255,170       307,643,606       
Assets under capital lease -                          8,575                  -                      -                  -                          8,575                  
Machinery and 

equipment 1,888,706           2,202,915           -                      -                  1,888,706           2,202,915           
Total 336,912,872$     344,507,138$     373,702$        381,575$    337,286,574$     344,888,713$     

Activities
Governmental Business-type

Activities Total
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 

 
 
Requests for Information 
 
This Comprehensive Annual Financial Report is intended to provide citizens, taxpayers, investors, 
and creditors with a general overview of the City’s finances. If you have any questions about this 
report, need additional financial information, or would like to obtain component unit financial 
statements, contact the City of Citrus Heights Administrative Services Department, 6360 Fountain 
Square Drive, Citrus Heights, CA 95621, or visit the City’s web page at www.citrusheights.net. 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

Assets:
Current Assets:

Pooled cash and investments 16,509,314$      478,541$           16,987,855$      
Receivables:

Accounts 889,479             95,471               984,950             
Interest 76,524               1,996                 78,520               

Prepaid items 12,697               -                         12,697               
Deposits 104,000             -                         104,000             
Due from other governments 5,775,235          1,061                 5,776,296          

          Total Current Assets 23,367,249        577,069             23,944,318        

Noncurrent Assets:
Interest receivable - lease 300,586             -                         300,586             
Notes and loans 5,682,008          -                         5,682,008          
Allowance on uncollectible notes and loans (3,377,890)         -                         (3,377,890)         
Direct financing lease receivable 3,664,605          -                         3,664,605          
Land held for resale 2,784,600          -                         2,784,600          
Capital assets not being depreciated 19,598,673        -                         19,598,673        
Capital assets, net of depreciation 317,314,199      373,702             317,687,901      

          Total Noncurrent Assets 345,966,781      373,702             346,340,483      

          Total Assets 369,334,030      950,771             370,284,801      

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related items 7,571,354          230,385             7,801,739          
OPEB related items 279,495             8,505                 288,000             

          Total Deferred Outflows
          of Resources 7,850,849          238,890             8,089,739          

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable 2,345,768          39,568               2,385,336          
Accrued liabilities 482,295             -                         482,295             
Accrued interest 183                    -                         183                    
Unearned revenue 2,458,775          -                         2,458,775          
Retentions payable 55,605               -                         55,605               
Deposits payable 140,011             -                         140,011             
Due to other governments 1,228,451          20,270               1,248,721          
Compensated absences - due within one year 1,398,481          -                         1,398,481          
Claims payable - due within one year 630,546             -                         630,546             

          Total Current Liabilities 8,740,115          59,838               8,799,953          

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences - due in more than one year 373,912             -                         373,912             
Claims payable - due in more than one year 1,061,454          -                         1,061,454          
Line of credit 50,001               -                         50,001               
Net pension liability 13,611,418        414,176             14,025,594        
Net OPEB liability 453,952             13,813               467,765             

          Total Noncurrent Liabilities 15,550,737        427,989             15,978,726        

          Total Liabilities 24,290,852        487,827             24,778,679        

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related items 675,513             20,555               696,068             
OPEB related items 47,147               1,435                 48,582               

          Total Deferred Inflows
          of Resources 722,660             21,990               744,650             

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 336,912,872      373,702             337,286,574      
Restricted for:
    Housing projects 4,006,448          -                         4,006,448          
    Stormwater maintenance 2,688,205          -                         2,688,205          
    Streets, roads and park projects 1,824,597          -                         1,824,597          
    Assessment District maintenance 1,522,826          -                         1,522,826          
    Other 3,333,511          -                         3,333,511          
Unrestricted 1,882,908          306,142             2,189,050          

          Total Net Position 352,171,367$    679,844$           352,851,211$    

JUNE 30, 2019

Primary Government

See Notes to Financial Statements 19



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Operating Capital
Charges for Contributions Contributions

Expenses Services and Grants and Grants

Functions/Programs
Primary Government:
Governmental Activities:

General government 6,909,949$       1,888,219$       334,010$          -$                      
Public safety 24,025,017       1,978,407         523,506            -                        
Economic development 296,233            -                        11,433              -                        
Culture and recreation 720,442            32,526              21,157              -                        
Public ways and facilities 21,730,069       4,474,641         4,535,958         6,511,130         
Community Enhancements 3,953,127         1,242,148         1,739,303         590,450            
Interest on long-term debt 70,962              -                        -                        -                        

      Total Governmental Activities 57,705,799       9,615,941         7,165,367         7,101,580         

Business-Type Activities:
Solid Waste 809,466            839,030            -                        -                        

      Total Business-Type Activities 809,466            839,030            -                        -                        

      Total Primary Government 58,515,265$     10,454,971$     7,165,367$       7,101,580$       

General Revenues:
Taxes:
   Property taxes, levied for general purpose
   Transient occupancy taxes
   Sales taxes
   Franchise taxes
   Utility users tax
   Other taxes
Motor vehicle in lieu - unrestricted
Use of money and property
Other

   Total General Revenues

   Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Restatement of Net Position

Net Position at End of Year

Program Revenues

See Notes to Financial Statements 20



Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

(4,687,720)$      -$                      (4,687,720)$      
(21,523,104)      -                        (21,523,104)      

(284,800)           -                        (284,800)           
(666,759)           -                        (666,759)           

(6,208,340)        -                        (6,208,340)        
(381,226)           -                        (381,226)           

(70,962)             -                        (70,962)             

(33,822,911)      -                        (33,822,911)      

-                        29,564              29,564              

-                        29,564              29,564              

(33,822,911)      29,564              (33,793,347)      

339,571            -                        339,571            
17,504              -                        17,504              

12,542,158       -                        12,542,158       
1,160,308         -                        1,160,308         
2,739,888         -                        2,739,888         

38,400              -                        38,400              
8,436,657         -                        8,436,657         
1,009,560         41,424              1,050,984         

32,181              7,831                40,012              

26,316,227       49,255              26,365,482       

(7,506,684)        78,819              (7,427,865)        

362,528,222     601,025            363,129,247     

(2,850,171)        -                        (2,850,171)        

352,171,367$   679,844$          352,851,211$   

 Net (Expenses) Revenues and Changes in 
Net Position 

See Notes to Financial Statements 21



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS       
JUNE 30, 2019

General
Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 3,004,047$           587,092$              295,729$              -$                         
Receivables:

Accounts 530,903                -                           656                       -                           
Notes and loans 18,788                  2,762,827             1,434,238             1,466,155            
Allowance on uncollectible notes and loans -                           (1,677,496)            (1,434,238)            (266,156)              
Interest 19,043                  2,588                    1,288                    -                           
Interest - lease 300,586                -                           -                           -                           
Direct financing lease receivable 3,664,605             -                           -                           -                           

Prepaid items 12,697                  -                           -                           -                           
Deposits 104,000                -                           -                           -                           
Due from other governments 3,368,797             -                           135,003                -                           
Due from other funds 1,994,353             -                           -                           -                           
Land held for resale -                           -                           -                           2,784,600            

     Total Assets 13,017,819$         1,675,011$           432,676$              3,984,599$          

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 751,575$              148$                     72,879$                -$                         
Accrued liabilities 482,295                -                           -                           -                           
Unearned revenues 566,853                -                           -                           -                           
Retentions payable -                           -                           -                           -                           
Deposits payable 140,011                -                           -                           -                           
Due to other governments 375,251                -                           8,412                    -                           
Due to other funds -                           -                           -                           775,000               

     Total Liabilities 2,315,985             148                       81,291                  775,000               

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues 206,115                -                           -                           -                           
Unavailable revenues - direct financing lease 3,664,605             -                           -                           -                           
Unavailable revenues - direct financing lease interest 300,586                -                           -                           -                           

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 4,171,306             -                           -                           -                           

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable 135,485                1,085,331             -                           1,199,999            
Restricted -                           589,532                351,385                2,009,600            
Committed 4,561,978             -                           -                           -                           
Assigned -                           -                           -                           -                           
Unassigned 1,833,065             -                           -                           -                           

     Total Fund Balances 6,530,528             1,674,863             351,385                3,209,599            

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances 13,017,819$         1,675,011$           432,676$              3,984,599$          

 Housing Agency 

 HOME Program 
Grants Special 
Revenue Fund 

 CDBG Grants 
Special Revenue 

Fund 

Special Revenue Funds

See Notes to Financial Statements 22



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Notes and loans
Allowance on uncollectible notes and loans
Interest
Interest - lease
Direct financing lease receivable

Prepaid items
Deposits
Due from other governments
Due from other funds
Land held for resale

     Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Deposits payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

     Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues
Unavailable revenues - direct financing lease
Unavailable revenues - direct financing lease interest

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

     Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

  

 Capital Projects 
Funds 

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

-$                         12,622,446$        16,509,314$         

-                           357,920               889,479                
-                           -                           5,682,008             
-                           -                           (3,377,890)            
-                           53,605                 76,524                  
-                           -                           300,586                
-                           -                           3,664,605             
-                           -                           12,697                  
-                           -                           104,000                

1,474,710            796,725               5,775,235             
-                           116,409               2,110,762             
-                           -                           2,784,600             

1,474,710$          13,947,105$        34,531,920$         

315,622$             1,205,544$          2,345,768$           
-                           -                           482,295                
-                           227,946               794,799                

10,329                 45,276                 55,605                  
-                           -                           140,011                
-                           844,788               1,228,451             

1,168,176            167,586               2,110,762             

1,494,127            2,491,140            7,157,691             

-                           247,690               453,805                
-                           -                           3,664,605             
-                           -                           300,586                

-                           247,690               4,418,996             

-                           -                           2,420,815             
-                           10,425,070          13,375,587           
-                           -                           4,561,978             
-                           945,767               945,767                

(19,417)                (162,562)              1,651,086             

(19,417)                11,208,275          22,955,233           

1,474,710$          13,947,105$        34,531,920$         

 Streets 

See Notes to Financial Statements 23
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2019

Fund balances of governmental funds 22,955,233$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 
different because:

    Capital assets net of depreciation have not been included as financial resources
    in governmental fund activity. 336,912,872      

    Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore 
    are not reported in governmental fund activity:

Line of credit (50,001)$           
Claims payable (1,692,000)        
Compensated absences (1,772,393)        (3,514,394)         

    Net pension liability not included in the governmental fund activity (13,611,418)       

    Net OPEB liability not included in the governmental fund activity (453,952)            

    Deferred outflows related to pension items are not included in the governmental 7,571,354          
    fund activity

    Deferred inflows related to pension items are not included in the governmental (675,513)            
    fund activity

    Deferred outflows related to OPEB items are not included in the governmental 279,495             
    fund activity

    Deferred inflows related to OPEB items are not included in the governmental (47,147)              
    fund activity

    Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due on
    Bonds has not been reported in the governmental funds. (183)                   

    Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
    in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
    in the governmental fund activity. 453,805             

    The City's direct financing lease receivable is reported as unearned revenue under 
    GASB Statement No. 62 for government-wide purposes.

Unavailable revenue associated with direct financing lease 3,965,191         
Unearned revenue associated with direct financing lease (1,663,976)        2,301,215          

Net Position of Governmental Activities 352,171,367$    

See Notes to Financial Statements 25



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS       
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

     General    
Revenues:
Taxes 16,837,829$         -$                          -$                          -$                         
Licenses and permits 1,417,508            -                            -                            -                           
Intergovernmental 8,483,794            401,313                752,309                -                           
Charges for services 1,996,469            -                            -                            -                           
Use of money and property 646,682               5,422                    6,252                    -                           
Fines and forfeitures 926,658               -                            -                            -                           
Contributions 1,813                   -                            -                            -                           
Miscellaneous 324,809               306,801                196,532                -                           

               Total Revenues 30,635,562           713,536                955,093                -                           

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government 6,346,759            -                            -                            -                           
   Public safety 20,082,722           -                            -                            -                           
   Economic development 257,861               -                            -                            -                           
   Culture and recreation 505,138               -                            -                            -                           
   Public ways and facilities 179                      -                            -                            -                           
   Community Enhancements 2,939,661            446,822                301,465                30,880                  
Capital outlay 15,955                 -                            406,405                -                           
Debt service:
      Interest and fiscal charges 8,747                   -                            -                            -                           

               Total Expenditures 30,157,022           446,822                707,870                30,880                  

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                 Over (Under) Expenditures 478,540               266,714                247,223                (30,880)                

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 108,237               -                            -                            323                       
Transfers out (212,119)              (43,006)                 (65,231)                 -                           
Draw on line of credit 50,001                 -                            -                            -                           
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                           -                            -                            -                           

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses) (53,881)                (43,006)                 (65,231)                 323                       

               Net Change in Fund Balances 424,659               223,708                181,992                (30,557)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported 5,173,792            365,825                111,689                2,815,156             

Restatements 932,077               1,085,330              57,704                  425,000                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 6,105,869            1,451,155              169,393                3,240,156             

Fund Balances, End of Year 6,530,528$           1,674,863$            351,385$               3,209,599$           

Special Revenue Funds
 HOME Program 
Grants Special 
Revenue Fund 

 CDBG Grants 
Special Revenue 

Fund  Housing Agency 

See Notes to Financial Statements 26



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community Enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
      Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                 Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out
Draw on line of credit
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

  

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

Funds Funds

-$                         -$                         16,837,829$          
-                           150,417                1,567,925              

1,785,844             9,736,555             21,159,815            
-                           5,053,389             7,049,858              
-                           286,633                944,989                
-                           200,659                1,127,317              
-                           25,059                  26,872                  
-                           752,284                1,580,426              

1,785,844             16,204,996           50,295,031            

-                           18,194                  6,364,953              
-                           1,269,570             21,352,292            
-                           31,579                  289,440                
-                           168,115                673,253                
-                           10,177,264           10,177,443            
-                           201,244                3,920,072              

1,790,216             2,890,771             5,103,347              

-                           62,215                  70,962                  

1,790,216             14,818,952           47,951,762            

(4,372)                  1,386,044             2,343,269              

-                           211,796                320,356                
-                           -                           (320,356)               
-                           -                           50,001                  
-                           32,181                  32,181                  

-                           243,977                82,182                  

(4,372)                  1,630,021             2,425,451              

(15,045)                9,321,434             17,772,851            

-                           256,820                2,756,931              

(15,045)                9,578,254             20,529,782            

(19,417)$               11,208,275$         22,955,233$          

 Capital Projects 
Funds 

 Streets 

See Notes to Financial Statements 27



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds 2,425,451$      

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

    Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement
    of activities, the costs of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives
    as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
    depreciation in the current period.

Capital outlay 5,088,747$      
Depreciation (12,674,438)     (7,585,691)       

    Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the
    repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position.

Drawdown on line of credit (50,001)            (50,001)            

    Accrued interest for long-term liabilities. This is the net change in accrued interest
    for the current period. (183)                 

    Certain long-term liabilities were reported in the Government-Wide Statement of 
    Activities and Changes in Net Position, but they do not require the use of current
    financial resources. Therefore, long-term liabilities were not reported as expenditures
    in governmental funds. These amounts represented the changes in those 
    long-term liabilities:

Changes in compensated absences (13,186)            
Changes in claims payable 18,000             4,814               

    Pension expenses recognized in accordance with GASB 68 not recognized in the
    governmental fund activity. (2,178,012)       

    OPEB expenses recognized in accordance with GASB 75 not recognized in the
    governmental fund activity. 38,585             

    Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized
    in the statement of activities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues
    in the governmental fund activity. (226,218)          

    Changes in differences between the direct financing lease receivable principal balance
    and outstanding unearned revenue amount, recognized in accordance with GASB 
    Statement No. 62 for government-wide purposes 64,571             

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (7,506,684)$     

See Notes to Financial Statements 28



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Current:

Pooled cash and investments 478,541$            
Receivables:

Accounts 95,471                
Interest 1,996                  

Due from other governments 1,061                  

Total Current Assets 577,069              

Noncurrent:
Capital assets - net of accumulated depreciation 373,702              

Total Noncurrent Assets 373,702              

Total Assets 950,771              

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Pension related items 230,385              
OPEB related items 8,505                  

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 238,890              

Liabilities:
Current:

Accounts payable 39,568                
Due to other governments 20,270                

Total Current Liabilities 59,838                

Noncurrent:
Net pension liability 414,176              
Net OPEB liability 13,813                

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 427,989              

Total Liabilities 487,827              

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Pension related items 20,555                
OPEB related items 1,435                  

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 21,990                

Net Position:
Investment in capital assets 373,702              
Unrestricted 306,142              

Total Net Position 679,844$            

 Solid Waste 

See Notes to Financial Statements 29



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Operating Revenues:
Sales and service charges 839,030$            
Miscellaneous 7,831                  

Total Operating Revenues 846,861              

Operating Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 396,178              
Professional services 9,348                  
Materials and supplies 110,771              
General and adminstative expenses 285,296              
Depreciation expense 7,873                  

Total Operating Expenses 809,466              

Operating Income 37,395                

Nonoperating Revenues :
Interest revenue 41,424                

Total Nonoperating Revenues 41,424                

Changes in Net Position 78,819                

Net Position:

Beginning of Year 601,025              

End of Fiscal Year 679,844$            

 Solid Waste 

See Notes to Financial Statements 30



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS   
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers and users 875,010$              
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services (93,626)                 
Cash paid to employees for services (626,994)               

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities 154,390                

Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Interest received 40,490                  

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities 40,490                  

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash
and Cash Equivalents 194,880                

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 283,661                

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 478,541$              

Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash
Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Operating income (loss) 37,395$                
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (loss)
  Net Cash Provided (used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 7,873                    
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 29,210                  
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments (1,061)                   
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 22,351                  
Increase (decrease) in due to other governments 4,142                    
Increase (decrease) in pension and related items 56,232                  
Increase (decrease) in OPEB and related items (1,752)                   

Total Adjustments 116,995                
Net Cash Provided (Used) by 
   Operating Activities 154,390$              

 Solid Waste 

See Notes to Financial Statements 31



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES - AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Agency
Funds

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 41,062$           

Total Assets 41,062$           

Liabilities:
Due to external parties/other agencies 41,062$           

Total Liabilities 41,062$           

See Notes to Financial Statements 32
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS  
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
Note 6: Long-Term Liabilities 

 
The following is a summary of changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2019: 
 

Balance        
June 30, 2018 Additions Retirements

Balance     
June 30, 2019

Due Within 
One Year

Governmental Activities:
Line of credit -$                     50,001$        -$                 50,001$        -$                 

-$                     50,001$        -$                 50,001$        -$                 
 

On November 29, 2018, the City executed the 2018 Lease Revenue Credit Facility financing 
in the amount of $12,000,000 which included a revolving credit agreement, site lease, facilities 
sublease and assignment agreement.  The revolving line of credit funds may be utilized to fund 
certain capital improvements and operating expenditures until the City receives its share of 
property tax revenue from Sacramento County in Fiscal Year 2022-23 under the terms of the 
1997 Revenue Neutrality Agreement described in Note 13.  The revolving line of credit bears 
interest ranging from 4.40% to 6.09%.  Interest payments on any funds drawn from the line of 
credit will be due on March 1 and September 1 of each year beginning March 1, 2019.  Payment 
of outstanding principal is due on September 1, 2024 at which time the line of credit will be 
repaid in full.  The City has the option to repay all or a portion of the funds it has drawn beginning 
March 1, 2021 with no prepayment penalty.  The City was required to take an initial minimum 
draw of $50,001 to open the line of credit, which will be used for the Auburn Boulevard 
Complete Streets Revitalization Project Phase 2. The outstanding balance at June 30, 2019, 
is $50,001, while the unused amount is $11,949,999. 
 

Note 7: Compensated Absences 
 
The following is a summary of changes in the City’s compensated absences for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2019: 
 

Balance      
June 30, 2018 Additions Reductions

Balance      
June 30, 2019

Current 
Portion

Governmental Activities 1,759,207$     1,711,383$   1,698,297$   1,772,293$     1,398,481$   

Total 1,759,207$     1,711,383$   1,698,297$   1,772,293$     1,398,481$   
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS  
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
Note 8: Fund Balances 

 
Nonspendable, restricted, committed and assigned fund balance consisted of the following at 
June 30, 2019: 

 

Fund Balance Classifications General Fund
Housing 

Program Grants CDBG Grants Housing Agency Streets

Total Nonmajor 
Governmental 

Funds Total
Nonspendable:

Loans and notes receivable 18,788$            1,085,331$       -$                    1,199,999$       -$                    -$                    2,304,118$       
Prepaid items 104,000            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      104,000            
Land held for sale 12,697             -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      12,697             

Total Nonspendable Fund Balances 135,485            1,085,331         -                      1,199,999         -                      -                      2,420,815         

Restricted for:
Donations for projects -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,564               4,564               
Stormwater maintenance -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,688,205         2,688,205         
Streets, roads and park projects -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,594,831         4,594,831         
Assessment district maintenance -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,522,826         1,522,826         
Police activities -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      974,770            974,770            
Housing projects -                      589,532            351,385            -                      -                      280,931            1,221,848         
Land held for resale -                      -                      -                      2,784,600         -                      -                      2,784,600         
Loans -                      -                      -                      (775,000)           -                      -                      (775,000)           
Pedestrian and bicycle facilities -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      166,101            166,101            
Business marketing -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,689               2,689               
Transit program -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      135,670            135,670            
Tree mitigation -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      54,483             54,483             
Other grant programs -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      

Total Restricted Fund Balances -                      589,532            351,385            2,009,600         -                      10,425,070       13,375,587       

Committed to:
Insurance 375,000            -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      375,000            
Petty cash 2,600               -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      2,600               
Revenue stabilization 4,184,378         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,184,378         

Total Committed Fund Balances 4,561,978         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      4,561,978         

Assigned to:
Capital improvements and equipment

replacement -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      945,767            945,767            
-                      -                      -                      -                      -                      945,767            945,767            

Unassigned in:
General Fund 1,833,065         -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      1,833,065         
Special Revenue Funds -                      -                      -                      -                      -                      (162,562)           (162,562)           
Capital Project Funds -                      -                      -                      -                      (19,417)            -                      (19,417)            

Total Unassigned Fund Balances 1,833,065         -                      -                      -                      (19,417)            (162,562)           1,651,086         

Total fund balances (deficit) 6,530,528$       1,674,863$       351,385$          3,209,599$       (19,417)$           11,208,275$     22,955,233$     

Major Funds
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS  
 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019 
 
Note 13: Commitments And Contingencies (Continued) 

 
The City had the following significant unexpended contractual commitments as of  
June 30, 2019: 
 

Highland/Rinconada Project 415,537$        
Mariposa Phase 3 1,275,225       

Total commitments 1,690,762$      
 

 
Note 14: Fund Balance/Net Position Restatements 

 
During the year ended June 30, 2019, the City reported the following net position and fund 
balance restatements: 
 
Net position was restated in the Governmental Activities in the amount of $2,850,171 as a 
result of the items mentioned below, as well as the removal of unavailable revenue that should 
not have previously been recorded, that was recognized as revenue on the Government-Wide 
Statements in previous years. 
 
Fund balance was restated in the General Fund in the amount of $932,077 as a result of 
removing the compensated absences liability at the fund level, establishing an advance to the 
Housing Agency Fund not previously recorded, correcting previous year unavailable revenue, 
and correcting CDBG drawdown amounts recorded in the incorrect fund. 
 
Fund balance was restated in the HOME Program Grants Special Revenue Fund in the amount 
of $1,085,330 as a result of the 2010 loan to the Sacramento Housing Redevelopment Agency 
for the Mariposa and Tiara Apartments modernization project. 
 
Fund balance was restated in the CBDG Grants Special Revenue Fund in the amount of 
$57,704 as a result of a reconciliation of the CDBG fund to the IDIS system. 
 
Fund balance was restated in the Housing Agency Fund in the amount of $425,000 as a result 
of an advance from the General Fund not previously recorded and a loan to Sacramento 
Housing Redevelopment Agency for the Mariposa and Tiara apartments modernization project. 
 
Fund balance was restated in Other Non-Major Governmental Funds in the amount of $256,820 
as a result of correcting previous year unavailable revenues not properly corrected. 

 
Note 15: Subsequent Events 
 

On September 30, 2019, the City closed escrow on the purchase of Sylvan school property 
located at 7137 Auburn Blvd for $3,405,216. To pay for the close, on September 24, 2019, the 
City initiated a draw in the amount of $3,255,212 from the revolving line of credit.  
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes 17,402,720$     17,329,720$     16,837,829$     (491,891)$        
Licenses and permits 1,289,360         1,289,360         1,417,508         128,148            
Intergovernmental 8,447,112         8,447,112         8,483,794         36,682              
Charges for services 1,898,626         1,908,626         1,996,469         87,843              
Use of money and property 568,211            636,011            646,682            10,671              
Fines and forfeitures 986,000            1,058,756         926,658            (132,098)          
Contributions -                       -                       1,813               1,813               
Miscellaneous 29,100              174,100            324,809            150,709            

Total Revenues 30,621,129       30,843,685       30,635,562       (208,123)          

Expenditures:
General government 5,664,854         6,391,858         6,346,759         45,099              
Public safety 20,548,576       20,471,577       20,082,722       388,855            
Economic development 396,160            396,160            257,861            138,299            
Culture and recreation 531,307            522,609            505,138            17,471              
Public ways and facilities 357                  357                  179                  178                  
Community enhancements 2,668,542         2,677,247         2,939,661         (262,414)          
Capital outlay 30,000              30,000              15,955              14,045              
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges -                       -                       8,747               (8,747)              

Total Expenditures 29,839,796       30,489,808       30,157,022       332,786            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 781,333            353,877            478,540            124,663            

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 25,000              25,000              108,237            83,237              
Other debts issued -                       50,000              50,001              1                      
Transfers out (683,975)          (259,750)          (212,119)          47,631              

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (658,975)          (184,750)          (53,881)            130,869            

Net Change in Fund Balance 122,358            169,127            424,659            255,532            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 6,105,869         6,105,869         6,105,869         -                       

Fund Balances, End of Year 6,228,227$       6,274,996$       6,530,528$       255,532$          
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOME PROGRAM GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 735,643$           735,643$           401,313$           (334,330)$          
Use of money and property -                        -                        5,422                 5,422                 
Miscellaneous -                        -                        306,801             306,801             

Total Revenues 735,643             735,643             713,536             (22,107)              

Expenditures:
Current:

Community enhancements 700,000             700,000             446,822             253,178             

Total Expenditures 700,000             700,000             446,822             253,178             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 35,643               35,643               266,714             231,071             

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers out -                        -                        (43,006)              43,006               

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) -                        -                        (43,006)              (43,006)              

Net Change in Fund Balance 35,643               35,643               223,708             188,065             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 1,451,155          1,451,155          1,451,155          -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,486,798$        1,486,798$        1,674,863$        188,065$           
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CDBG GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 589,000$           589,000$           752,309$           163,309$           
Use of money and property -                        -                        6,252                 6,252                 
Miscellaneous -                        -                        196,532             196,532             

Total Revenues 589,000             589,000             955,093             366,093             

Expenditures:
Current:

Community enhancements 600,346             600,347             301,465             298,882             
Capital outlay -                        -                        406,405             (406,405)            

Total Expenditures 600,346             600,347             707,870             (107,523)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (11,346)              (11,347)              247,223             258,570             

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers out -                        -                        (65,231)              65,231               

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) -                        -                        (65,231)              (65,231)              

Net Change in Fund Balance (11,346)              (11,347)              181,992             193,339             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 169,393             169,393             169,393             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 158,047$           158,046$           351,385$           193,339$           
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOUSING AGENCY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures:
Current:

Community enhancements 42,472$             42,473$             30,880$             11,593$             

Total Expenditures 42,472               42,473               30,880               11,593               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (42,472)              (42,473)              (30,880)              11,593               

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in -                        -                        323                    (323)                   

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) -                        -                        323                    323                    

Net Change in Fund Balance (42,472)              (42,473)              (30,557)              11,916               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 3,240,156          3,240,156          3,240,156          -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 3,197,684$        3,197,683$        3,209,599$        11,916$             
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
Miscellaneous Rate Plan
Rate Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.06364% 0.07230% 0.07496% 0.07939% 0.07897%

Rate Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 3,959,792$        4,962,609$        6,486,625$        7,873,259$        7,610,202$        

Rate Plan's Covered Payroll 7,143,034$        7,437,222$        8,102,528$        8,017,935$        7,889,233$        

Rate Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 55.44% 66.73% 80.06% 98.20% 96.46%

Safety Rate Plan
Rate Plan's Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.05785% 0.05364% 0.05852% 0.06404% 0.06658%

Rate Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 3,599,860$        3,681,807$        5,064,060$        6,351,188$        6,415,392$        

Rate Plan's Covered Payroll 7,239,564$        7,350,834$        7,921,496$        8,247,151$        8,354,763$        

Rate Plan's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 49.72% 50.09% 63.93% 77.01% 76.79%

Total Plan
Plan Proportion of the Net Pension Liability 0.12149% 0.12594% 0.13349% 0.14343% 0.14555%

Plan Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 7,559,652$        8,644,416$        11,550,685$      14,224,447$      14,025,594$      

Plan Covered Payroll 14,382,598$      14,788,056$      16,024,024$      16,265,086$      16,243,996$      

Plan Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability as 
Percentage of Covered Payroll 52.56% 58.46% 72.08% 87.45% 86.34%

The Pension Plan's (PERF-C) Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 79.82% 78.40% 74.06% 73.31% 75.26%

Notes to Schedule:
Benefit Changes: There were no changes to benefit terms. However, the figures above do not include any liability impact that may have resulted from plan changes
which occurred after the measurement dates. This applies for voluntary benefit changes as well as any offers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden
Handshakes).

Changes of Assumptions: In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial
Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the discount rate in 2018. In 2017, the accounting discount rate reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent. In
2016, there were no changes. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative expense) to 7.65 percent
(without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense.) In 2014, amount reported were based on the 7.5 percent discount rate.

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only five
years are shown.
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COST SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2019

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Miscellaneous Rate Plan
Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,237,660$        1,052,606$        1,109,977$        1,127,777$        1,259,805$        
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (1,237,660)        (1,052,606)        (1,109,977)        (1,127,777)        (1,259,805)        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Covered Payroll 7,437,222$        8,102,528$        8,017,935$        7,889,233$        8,319,602$        

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 16.64% 12.99% 13.84% 14.30% 15.14%

Safety Rate Plan
Actuarially Determined Contribution 1,937,578$        1,460,317$        1,605,543$        1,675,225$        1,743,186$        
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (1,937,578)        (1,460,317)        (1,605,543)        (1,675,225)        (1,743,186)        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Covered Payroll 7,350,834$        7,921,496$        8,247,151$        8,354,763$        7,715,475$        

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 26.36% 18.43% 19.47% 20.05% 22.59%

Total Plan
Actuarially Determined Contribution 3,175,238$        2,512,923$        2,715,520$        2,803,002$        3,002,991$        
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contribution (3,175,238)        (2,512,923)        (2,715,520)        (2,803,002)        (3,002,991)        
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      -$                      

Covered Payroll 14,788,056$      16,024,024$      16,265,086$      16,243,996$      16,035,077$      

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 21.47% 15.68% 16.70% 17.26% 18.73%

Note to Schedule:

Valuation Date:

Methods and  assumptions used to determine contribution rates:
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization method
Asset valuation method
Inflation
Payroll Growth
Projected Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return
Retirement Age

Mortality

(1) Historical information is required only for measurement for which GASB 68 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2015 was the first year of implementation, therefore only five 
years are shown.

Direct rate smoothing
Level percentage of payroll, closed
Entry Age Normal Cost Method

June 30, 2016

2.75%

Varies by Entry Age and Service
3.00%

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2011, including updates to salary increase, 
mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report may be accessed on the CalPERS 
website at www.calpers.ca.gov under Forms and Publications.
The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS’ specific data. The table includes 20 
years of mortality improvements using Society of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on this table, 
please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

7.375% (net of pension plan investment and administrative expenses, includes inflation)
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGE IN THE TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2018 2019
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 205,006$              211,156$              
Interest on the total OPEB liability 149,338                171,850                
Benefit payments (20,597)                 (33,358)                 
Net change in total OPEB liability 333,747                349,648                
Total OPEB liability - beginning 2,017,702             2,351,449             
Total OPEB liability - ending 2,351,449$           2,701,097$           

Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - employer 373,000$              378,000$              
Net investment income 159,817                143,701                
Benefit payments (20,597)                 (33,358)                 
Administrative expense (837)                      (3,288)                   
Net change in plan fiduciary net position 511,383                485,055                
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 1,236,894             1,748,277             
Plan fiduciary net position - ending (b) 1,748,277$           2,233,332$           

Net OPEB Liability 603,172$              467,765$              

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPEB liability 74.35% 82.68%

Covered-employee payroll 18,696,235$         18,764,996$         

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll 3.23% 2.49%

Notes to Schedule: None

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.

Changes in Assumptions:  None
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

2018 2019
378,000$            288,000$            

(378,000)             (288,000)             
-$                        -$                        

18,764,996$       19,084,505$       

2.01% 1.51%

Notes to Schedule: None.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:
Valuation Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal, Level Percentage of Payroll
Amoritzation Method Level percent of pay
Amortization Period 10.9-year average remaining fixed period for 2018/19
Asset Valuation  Method Investment gains and lossed spread over 5-year rolling period
Discount Rate 6.75%
Inflation 2.75%

Non-Medicare – 7.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ulitmate rate of 4.0% in 2076 an laters years
Medicare – 6.5% for 2019, decreasing to an ulitmate rate of 4.0% in 2076 an laters years

Mortality Rate CalPERS 1997-2011 Experience Study
Mortality Improvement Mortiality projected fully generational with Society of Actuaries Scale MP-2016

Medical Trend 

Actuarially Determined Contribution
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially Determined Contributions
Contribution Deficiency (Excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-employee payroll

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018 was the first year of
implementation.  Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years as information becomes available.
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Community Events –

Code Enforcement –

Gas Tax –

Road Maintenance and Rehabilitation –

Stormwater Utility Tax –

Road Maintenance

Transit –

Transportation Development Act –

Police –

Police Grants –

Supplemental Law Enforcement Services (SLES) –

Housing In-lieu Fee –

Property Based Improvement District –

Roadway Development Fees – 

Housing Mitigation Development Fees – 

Tree Mitigation Fees – 

Park Facilities Development Fees – 
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Transit Development Fees – 

Other Grants Fund – 

Assessment Districts:

Police Donations  – 

Measure A Construction –

General Capital Improvements –

Community Capital Replacement – 

Auburn Boulevard Utilities –
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS         
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 3,075$                   440,528$               162,223$               1,316,892$            
Receivables:

Accounts 2,500                     272,859                 -                             -                             
Interest -                             1,811                     -                             5,315                     

Due from other governments -                             4,828                     -                             362,440                 
Due from other funds -                             -                             116,409                 -                             

         Total Assets 5,575$                   720,026$               278,632$               1,684,647$            

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable 8,394$                   1,731$                   117,274$               160,081$               
Unearned revenues -                             -                             -                             -                             
Retentions payable -                             -                             -                             3,766                     
Due to other governments -                             2,953                     9,450                     -                             
Due to other funds -                             -                             -                             -                             

         Total Liabilities 8,394                     4,684                     126,724                 163,847                 

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues -                             204,975                 -                             -                             

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources -                             204,975                 -                             -                             

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable -                             -                             -                             -                             
Restricted -                             510,367                 151,908                 1,520,800              
Committed -                             -                             -                             -                             
Assigned -                             -                             -                             -                             
Unassigned (2,819)                    -                             -                             -                             

         Total Fund Balances (2,819)                    510,367                 151,908                 1,520,800              

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances 5,575$                   720,026$               278,632$               1,684,647$            

Special Revenue Funds

 Community 
Events 

 Code 
Enforcement  Gas Tax 

 Road 
Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        
(CONTINUED)

2,937,088$            1,006,688$            838,573$               171,745$               

-                             -                             -                             -                             
13,278                   4,955                     3,869                     1,309                     

266,075                 -                             -                             -                             
-                             -                             -                             -                             

3,216,441$            1,011,643$            842,442$               173,054$               

458,547$               28,988$                 89$                        1,038$                   
6,000                     -                             -                             -                             

35,594                   -                             -                             5,916                     
28,094                   -                             802,247                 -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             

528,235                 28,988                   802,336                 6,954                     

-                             -                             -                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             
2,688,206              982,655                 40,106                   166,100                 

-                             -                             
-                             -                             

-                             -                             -                             -                             

2,688,206              982,655                 40,106                   166,100                 

3,216,441$            1,011,643$            842,442$               173,054$               

Special Revenue Funds

 Stormwater Utility 
Tax 

 Road 
Maintenance  Transit 

 Transportation 
Development Act 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        

418,746$              -$                          180,788$              -$                          

2,665                    -                            -                            -                            
1,744                    -                            961                       -                            

48,912                  79,514                  -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

472,067$              79,514$                181,749$              -$                          

9,504$                  26,937$                19,829$                -$                          
-                            -                            162,748                -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            50,738                  -                            -                            

9,504                    77,675                  182,577                -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
462,563                1,839                    -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            (828)                      -                            

462,563                1,839                    (828)                      -                            

472,067$              79,514$                181,749$              -$                          

 Special Revenue Funds 

 Police  Police Grants 

 Supplemental 
Law Enforcement 
Services (SLES) 

 Housing In-lieu 
Fee 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        
(CONTINUED)

538$                     472,030$              279,533$              62,603$                

-                            32,209                  -                            -                            
2                           1,979                    1,398                    289                       

2,149                    -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

2,689$                  506,218$              280,931$              62,892$                

-$                          2,874$                  -$                          8,408$                  
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            2,874                    -                            8,408                    

-                            32,209                  -                            -                            

-                            32,209                  -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
2,689                    471,135                280,931                54,484                  

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

2,689                    471,135                280,931                54,484                  

2,689$                  506,218$              280,931$              62,892$                

Special Revenue Funds

 Property Based 
Improvement 

District 

 Roadway 
Development 

Fees 

 Housing 
Mitigation 

Development 
Fees 

 Tree Mitigation 
Fees 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        

126,761$              103,357$              80,674$                35,944$                

-                            6,908                    -                            -                            
564                       230                       -                            152                       

-                            -                            25,213                  162                       
-                            -                            -                            -                            

127,325$              110,495$              105,887$              36,258$                

4,967$                  8,023$                  46,689$                -$                          
-                            -                            59,198                  -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

4,967                    8,023                    105,887                -                            

-                            6,908                    -                            -                            

-                            6,908                    -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
122,358                95,564                  -                            36,258                  

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

122,358                95,564                  -                            36,258                  

127,325$              110,495$              105,887$              36,258$                

Special Revenue Funds

 Park Facilities 
Development 

Fees 

 Transit 
Development 

Fees 
 Other Grants 

Fund 
 Assessment 

District Zone 1 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        
(CONTINUED)

78,119$                -$                          -$                          155,354$              

-                            -                            -                            -                            
340                       -                            -                            679                       
111                       19                         77                         71                         

-                            -                            -                            -                            

78,570$                19$                       77$                       156,104$              

446$                     273$                     375$                     135$                     
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            239                       650                       232                       
-                            6,722                    11,017                  -                            

446                       7,234                    12,042                  367                       

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
78,124                  -                            -                            155,737                

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            (7,215)                   (11,965)                 -                            

78,124                  (7,215)                   (11,965)                 155,737                

78,570$                19$                       77$                       156,104$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Assessment 
District Zone 2 

 Assessment 
District Zone 3 

 Assessment 
District Zone 4 

 Assessment 
District 98-01 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        

108,884$              1,033,761$           28,789$                100,569$              

-                            -                            -                            -                            
471                       4,524                    120                       438                       
314                       255                       401                       138                       

-                            -                            -                            -                            

109,669$              1,038,540$           29,310$                101,145$              

1,259$                  15,303$                562$                     7,904$                  
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            568                       -                            355                       
-                            -                            -                            -                            

1,259                    15,871                  562                       8,259                    

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
108,410                1,022,669             28,748                  92,886                  

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

108,410                1,022,669             28,748                  92,886                  

109,669$              1,038,540$           29,310$                101,145$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Assessment 
District 98-02 

 Assessment 
District 03-01 

 Assessment 
District 98-02 

Zone 2 

 Assessment 
District 03-01 

Zone 2 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                          -$                          1,411,060$           421,107$              

3,598                    5,000                    -                            -                            
-                            -                            6,300                    -                            

5,721                    -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

9,319$                  5,000$                  1,417,360$           421,107$              

46,786$                -$                          71,388$                1,533$                  
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            

98,670                  439                       -                            -                            

145,456                439                       71,388                  1,533                    

3,598                    -                            -                            -                            

3,598                    -                            -                            -                            

-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            4,561                    1,345,972             -                            
-                            -                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            -                            419,574                

(139,735)               -                            -                            -                            

(139,735)               4,561                    1,345,972             419,574                

9,319$                  5,000$                  1,417,360$           421,107$              

 Special Revenue Funds  Capital Projects Funds 

 Lighting 
Assessment 

District  Police Donations 
 Measure A 

Construction 

 General Capital 
Improvements 

Capital Projects 
Fund 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments
Receivables:

Accounts
Interest

Due from other governments
Due from other funds

         Total Assets

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources, 
and Fund Balances:
Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Unearned revenues
Retentions payable
Due to other governments
Due to other funds

         Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Unavailable revenues

     Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Fund Balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

         Total Fund Balances

     Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
     Resources, and Fund Balances

    

Total Other
Governmental

Funds

647,017$              -$                          12,622,446$         

32,181                  -                            357,920                
2,877                    -                            53,605                  

325                       -                            796,725                
-                            -                            116,409                

682,400$              -$                          13,947,105$         

156,207$              -$                          1,205,544$           
-                            -                            227,946                
-                            -                            45,276                  
-                            -                            844,788                
-                            -                            167,586                

156,207                -                            2,491,140             

-                            -                            247,690                

-                            -                            247,690                

-                            -                            -                            
-                            -                            10,425,070           
-                            -                            -                            

526,193                -                            945,767                
-                            -                            (162,562)               

526,193                -                            11,208,275           

682,400$              -$                          13,947,105$         

 Capital Projects Funds 

 Community 
Capital 

Replacement 

 Auburn 
Boulevard 

Utilities 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS         
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits -$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
Intergovernmental -                           -                           1,721,260             1,684,139             
Charges for services 75                         664,939                -                           -                           
Use of money and property -                           2,267                    6,444                    15,320                  
Fines and forfeitures -                           -                           -                           -                           
Contributions 15,498                  -                           -                           -                           
Miscellaneous -                           -                           98,935                  -                           

               Total Revenues 15,573                  667,206                1,826,639             1,699,459             

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government -                           -                           -                           -                           
   Public safety -                           463,853                -                           -                           
   Economic development -                           -                           -                           -                           
   Culture and recreation 144,088                -                           -                           -                           
   Public ways and facilities -                           -                           1,776,150             75,311                  
   Community enhancements -                           -                           -                           -                           
Capital outlay -                           -                           35,976                  612,449                
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges -                           -                           -                           -                           

               Total Expenditures 144,088                463,853                1,812,126             687,760                

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures (128,515)               203,353                14,513                  1,011,699             

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in 131,747                79,795                  -                           -                           
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                           -                           -                           -                           

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses) 131,747                79,795                  -                           -                           

               Net Change in Fund Balances 3,232                    283,148                14,513                  1,011,699             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported (6,051)                   (6,223)                   137,395                509,101                

Restatements -                           233,442                -                           -                           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated (6,051)                   227,219                137,395                509,101                

Fund Balances, End of Year (2,819)$                 510,367$              151,908$              1,520,800$           

Special Revenue Funds

 Community 
Events 

 Code 
Enforcement  Gas Tax 

 Road 
Maintenance and 

Rehabilitation 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                          -$                          -$                          -$                          
-                           2,055,483             3,665,009             -                           

3,804,560             -                           -                           -                           
74,973                  27,717                  11,069                  6,310                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

13,665                  -                           -                           137,662                

3,893,198             2,083,200             3,676,078             143,972                

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

2,278,486             1,506,868             3,497,388             134,261                
-                           -                           -                           -                           

1,182,391             436,825                46,998                  3,000                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           

3,460,877             1,943,693             3,544,386             137,261                

432,321                139,507                131,692                6,711                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

432,321                139,507                131,692                6,711                    

2,255,885             843,148                (91,586)                 159,389                

-                           -                           -                           -                           

2,255,885             843,148                (91,586)                 159,389                

2,688,206$           982,655$              40,106$                166,100$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Stormwater 
Utility Tax 

 Road 
Maintenance  Transit 

 Transportation 
Development Act 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        

-$                          -$                          -$                         -$                         
-                           314,481                168,144                -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

11,140                  4                           -                           29                        
200,659                -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           
7,820                    -                           -                           -                           

219,619                314,485                168,144                29                        

-                           -                           -                           -                           
155,993                314,481                169,546                -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           1,726                    

43,569                  -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

199,562                314,481                169,546                1,726                    

20,057                  4                           (1,402)                  (1,697)                  

-                           -                           -                           67                        
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           67                        

20,057                  4                           (1,402)                  (1,630)                  

442,506                (40,480)                 574                       1,630                    

-                           42,315                  -                           -                           

442,506                1,835                    574                       1,630                    

462,563$              1,839$                  (828)$                   -$                         

Special Revenue Funds

 Police  Police Grants 

 Supplemental 
Law Enforcement 
Services (SLES) 

 Housing In-lieu 
Fee 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                         96,631$                -$                         -$                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           31,700                  10,728                  

2,162                    11,929                  7,909                    3,315                    
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

2,162                    108,560                39,609                  14,043                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           19,337                  -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           59,005                  
-                           41,645                  -                           -                           

-                           -                           62,215                  -                           

-                           60,982                  62,215                  59,005                  

2,162                    47,578                  (22,606)                (44,962)                

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

2,162                    47,578                  (22,606)                (44,962)                

527                       455,766                303,537                99,446                  

-                           (32,209)                -                           -                           

527                       423,557                303,537                99,446                  

2,689$                  471,135$              280,931$              54,484$                

Special Revenue Funds

 Property Based 
Improvement 

District 

 Roadway 
Development 

Fees 

 Housing 
Mitigation 

Development 
Fees 

 Tree Mitigation 
Fees 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        

-$                         21,335$                -$                         -$                         
38,654                  -                           89,385                  -                           

-                           -                           -                           10,523                  
3,389                    1,985                    -                           1,033                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

42,043                  23,320                  89,385                  11,556                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           11,433                  -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           14,303                  

41,962                  -                           77,952                  -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

41,962                  -                           89,385                  14,303                  

81                        23,320                  -                           (2,747)                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

81                        23,320                  -                           (2,747)                  

122,277                79,153                  (20,181)                39,005                  

-                           (6,909)                  20,181                  -                           

122,277                72,244                  -                           39,005                  

122,358$              95,564$                -$                         36,258$                

Special Revenue Funds

 Park Facilities 
Development 

Fees 

 Transit 
Development 

Fees 
 Other Grants 

Fund 
 Assessment 

District Zone 1 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           

12,489                  6,550                    4,739                    10,640                  
2,005                    19                        14                        4,139                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

14,494                  6,569                    4,753                    14,779                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

7,792                    10,228                  9,480                    10,494                  
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

7,792                    10,228                  9,480                    10,494                  

6,702                    (3,659)                  (4,727)                  4,285                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

6,702                    (3,659)                  (4,727)                  4,285                    

71,422                  (3,556)                  (7,238)                  151,452                

-                           -                           -                           -                           

71,422                  (3,556)                  (7,238)                  151,452                

78,124$                (7,215)$                (11,965)$               155,737$              

Special Revenue Funds

 Assessment 
District Zone 2 

 Assessment 
District Zone 3 

 Assessment 
District Zone 4 

 Assessment 
District 98-01 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           

22,200                  88,700                  16,288                  19,260                  
2,705                    26,501                  653                       2,831                    

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

24,905                  115,201                16,941                  22,091                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

17,685                  45,855                  14,484                  27,262                  
-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

17,685                  45,855                  14,484                  27,262                  

7,220                    69,346                  2,457                    (5,171)                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

7,220                    69,346                  2,457                    (5,171)                  

101,190                953,323                26,291                  98,057                  

-                           -                           -                           -                           

101,190                953,323                26,291                  98,057                  

108,410$              1,022,669$           28,748$                92,886$                

Special Revenue Funds

 Assessment 
District 98-02 

 Assessment 
District 03-01 

 Assessment 
District 98-02 

Zone 2 

 Assessment 
District 03-01 

Zone 2 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

        
(CONTINUED)

-$                         -$                         -$                         -$                         
-                           -                           -                           -                           

349,998                -                           -                           -                           
1,000                    -                           37,615                  -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           9,561                    -                           -                           
-                           -                           494,202                -                           

350,998                9,561                    531,817                -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           5,000                    -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           20,146                  
-                           -                           -                           -                           

434,861                -                           297,019                -                           
-                           -                           -                           6,567                    
-                           -                           215,722                -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

434,861                5,000                    512,741                26,713                  

(83,863)                4,561                    19,076                  (26,713)                

-                           -                           -                           -                           
-                           -                           -                           -                           

-                           -                           -                           -                           

(83,863)                4,561                    19,076                  (26,713)                

(55,872)                -                           1,326,896             446,287                

-                           -                           -                           -                           

(55,872)                -                           1,326,896             446,287                

(139,735)$             4,561$                  1,345,972$           419,574$              

Special Revenue Funds Capital Projects Funds

 Lighting 
Assessment 

District  Police Donations 
 Measure A 

Construction 

 General Capital 
Improvements 

Capital Projects 
Fund 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

 
Revenues:
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of money and property
Fines and forfeitures
Contributions
Miscellaneous

               Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
   General government
   Public safety
   Economic development
   Culture and recreation
   Public ways and facilities
   Community enhancements
Capital outlay
Debt service:
   Interest and fiscal charges

               Total Expenditures

               Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
                Over (Under) Expenditures

Other Financing Sources (Uses):
Transfers in
Proceeds from sale of capital asset

               Total Other Financing Sources
                 (Uses)

               Net Change in Fund Balances

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as
 previously reported

Restatements

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as Restated

Fund Balances, End of Year

    

Total Other
Governmental

Funds

32,451$                -$                         150,417$              
-                           -                           9,736,555             
-                           -                           5,053,389             

22,156                  -                           286,633                
-                           -                           200,659                
-                           -                           25,059                  
-                           -                           752,284                

54,607                  -                           16,204,996           

18,194                  -                           18,194                  
160,697                -                           1,269,570             

-                           -                           31,579                  
24,027                  -                           168,115                

-                           -                           10,177,264           
14,032                  -                           201,244                

272,196                -                           2,890,771             

-                           -                           62,215                  

489,146                -                           14,818,952           

(434,539)               -                           1,386,044             

-                           187                       211,796                
32,181                  -                           32,181                  

32,181                  187                       243,977                

(402,358)               187                       1,630,021             

928,551                (187)                     9,321,434             

-                           -                           256,820                

928,551                (187)                     9,578,254             

526,193$              -$                         11,208,275$         

Capital Projects Funds

 Community 
Capital 

Replacement 

 Auburn 
Boulevard 

Utilities 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY EVENTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      -$                      75$                    75$                    
Contributions 12,000               12,000               15,498               3,498                 

Total Revenues 12,000               12,000               15,573               3,573                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Culture and recreation 143,749             143,749             144,088             (339)                   

Total Expenditures 143,749             143,749             144,088             (339)                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (131,749)            (131,749)            (128,515)            3,234                 

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in 131,747             131,747             131,747             -                        

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 131,747             131,747             131,747             -                        

Net Change in Fund Balance (2)                      (2)                      3,232                 3,234                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (6,051)                (6,051)                (6,051)                -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (6,053)$              (6,053)$              (2,819)$              3,234$               
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
CODE ENFORCEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services 264,000$           264,000$           664,939$           400,939$           
Use of money and property -                        -                        2,267                 2,267                 

Total Revenues 264,000             264,000             667,206             403,206             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 342,003             342,003             463,853             (121,850)            

Total Expenditures 342,003             342,003             463,853             (121,850)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (78,003)              (78,003)              203,353             281,356             

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers out (25,000)              (25,000)              -                        (25,000)              
Transfers in 103,003             103,003             79,795               23,208               

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 78,003               78,003               79,795               1,792                 

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        -                        283,148             283,148             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 227,219             227,219             227,219             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 227,219$           227,219$           510,367$           283,148$           
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GAS TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 2,133,141$        2,133,141$        1,721,260$        (411,881)$          
Use of money and property -                        -                        6,444                 6,444                 
Miscellaneous 98,919               98,919               98,935               16                      

Total Revenues 2,232,060          2,232,060          1,826,639          (405,421)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities 2,080,085          2,080,086          1,776,150          303,936             
Capital outlay -                        -                        35,976               (35,976)              

Total Expenditures 2,080,085          2,080,086          1,812,126          267,960             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 151,975             151,974             14,513               (137,461)            

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers out (4,000)                (4,000)                -                        (4,000)                

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (4,000)                (4,000)                -                        4,000                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 147,975             147,974             14,513               (133,461)            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 137,395             137,395             137,395             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 285,370$           285,369$           151,908$           (133,461)$          
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD MAINTENANCE AND REHABILITATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 1,444,942$        1,444,942$        1,684,139$        239,197$           
Use of money and property -                        -                        15,320               15,320               

Total Revenues 1,444,942          1,444,942          1,699,459          254,517             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities 1,444,942          1,444,942          75,311               1,369,631          
Capital outlay -                        -                        612,449             (612,449)            

Total Expenditures 1,444,942          1,444,942          687,760             757,182             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        -                        1,011,699          1,011,699          

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        -                        1,011,699          1,011,699          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 509,101             509,101             509,101             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 509,101$           509,101$           1,520,800$        1,011,699$        
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STORMWATER UTILITY TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services 3,400,000$        3,400,000$        3,804,560$        404,560$           
Use of money and property 12,000               12,000               74,973               62,973               
Miscellaneous -                        -                        13,665               13,665               

Total Revenues 3,412,000          3,412,000          3,893,198          481,198             

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities 2,329,168          2,329,169          2,278,486          50,683               
Capital outlay 2,700,000          2,700,000          1,182,391          1,517,609          

Total Expenditures 5,029,168          5,029,169          3,460,877          1,568,292          

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (1,617,168)         (1,617,169)         432,321             2,049,490          

Net Change in Fund Balance (1,617,168)         (1,617,169)         432,321             2,049,490          

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 2,255,885          2,255,885          2,255,885          -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 638,717$           638,716$           2,688,206$        2,049,490$        
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROAD MAINTENANCE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 2,023,330$        2,023,330$        2,055,483$        32,153$             
Use of money and property -                        -                        27,717               27,717               

Total Revenues 2,023,330          2,023,330          2,083,200          59,870               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities 1,408,860          1,408,860          1,506,868          (98,008)              
Capital outlay 400,000             400,000             436,825             (36,825)              

Total Expenditures 1,808,860          1,808,860          1,943,693          (134,833)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 214,470             214,470             139,507             (74,963)              

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers out (75,000)              (75,000)              -                        (75,000)              

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) (75,000)              (75,000)              -                        75,000               

Net Change in Fund Balance 139,470             139,470             139,507             37                      

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 843,148             843,148             843,148             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 982,618$           982,618$           982,655$           37$                    
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSIT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 4,035,356$        4,035,356$        3,665,009$        (370,347)$          
Use of money and property -                        -                        11,069               11,069               

Total Revenues 4,035,356          4,035,356          3,676,078          (359,278)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities 4,129,531          4,129,531          3,497,388          632,143             
Capital outlay -                        -                        46,998               (46,998)              

Total Expenditures 4,129,531          4,129,531          3,544,386          585,145             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (94,175)              (94,175)              131,692             225,867             

Net Change in Fund Balance (94,175)              (94,175)              131,692             225,867             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (91,586)              (91,586)              (91,586)              -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (185,761)$          (185,761)$          40,106$             225,867$           
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 209,778$           209,778$           -$                      (209,778)$          
Use of money and property 500                    500                    6,310                 5,810                 
Miscellaneous -                        -                        137,662             137,662             

Total Revenues 210,278             210,278             143,972             (66,306)              

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        -                        134,261             (134,261)            
Capital outlay 378,857             378,857             3,000                 375,857             

Total Expenditures 378,857             378,857             137,261             241,596             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (168,579)            (168,579)            6,711                 175,290             

Net Change in Fund Balance (168,579)            (168,579)            6,711                 175,290             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 159,389             159,389             159,389             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (9,190)$              (9,190)$              166,100$           175,290$           
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Use of money and property 2,000$               2,000$               11,140$             9,140$               
Fines and forfeitures 126,000             126,000             200,659             74,659               
Miscellaneous -                        -                        7,820                 7,820                 

Total Revenues 128,000             128,000             219,619             91,619               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 117,081             117,081             155,993             (38,912)              
Capital outlay -                        -                        43,569               (43,569)              

Total Expenditures 117,081             117,081             199,562             (82,481)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 10,919               10,919               20,057               9,138                 

Net Change in Fund Balance 10,919               10,919               20,057               9,138                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 442,506             442,506             442,506             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 453,425$           453,425$           462,563$           9,138$               
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
POLICE GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 429,016$           429,016$           314,481$           (114,535)$          
Use of money and property -                        -                        4                        4                        

Total Revenues 429,016             429,016             314,485             (114,531)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety 163,739             163,740             314,481             (150,741)            

Total Expenditures 163,739             163,740             314,481             (150,741)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 265,277             265,276             4                        (265,272)            

Net Change in Fund Balance 265,277             265,276             4                        (265,272)            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 1,835                 1,835                 1,835                 -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 267,112$           267,111$           1,839$               (265,272)$          
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
SUPPLEMENTAL LAW ENFORCEMENT SERVICES (SLES)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 133,000$           133,000$           168,144$           35,144$             

Total Revenues 133,000             133,000             168,144             35,144               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety -                        -                        169,546             (169,546)            

Total Expenditures -                        -                        169,546             (169,546)            

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 133,000             133,000             (1,402)                (134,402)            

Net Change in Fund Balance 133,000             133,000             (1,402)                (134,402)            

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 574                    574                    574                    -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 133,574$           133,574$           (828)$                 (134,402)$          
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PROPERTY BASED IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Taxes 753,241$           753,241$           -$                      (753,241)$          
Use of money and property -                        -                        2,162                 2,162                 

Total Revenues 753,241             753,241             2,162                 (751,079)            

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 750,373             750,373             -                        750,373             

Total Expenditures 750,373             750,373             -                        750,373             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures 2,868                 2,868                 2,162                 (706)                   

Net Change in Fund Balance 2,868                 2,868                 2,162                 (706)                   

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 527                    527                    527                    -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 3,395$               3,395$               2,689$               (706)$                 
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ROADWAY DEVELOPMENT FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Licenses and permits -$                      270,360$           96,631$             (173,729)$          
Use of money and property -                        3,000                 11,929               8,929                 

Total Revenues -                        273,360             108,560             (164,800)            

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        249,668             19,337               230,331             
Capital outlay -                        60,000               41,645               18,355               

Total Expenditures -                        309,668             60,982               248,686             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (36,308)              47,578               83,886               

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (36,308)              47,578               83,886               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 423,557             423,557             423,557             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 423,557$           387,249$           471,135$           83,886$             
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOUSING MITIGATION DEVELOPMENT FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      20,000$             31,700$             11,700$             
Use of money and property -                        1,000                 7,909                 6,909                 

Total Revenues -                        21,000               39,609               18,609               

Expenditures:
Debt service:
      Interest and fiscal charges -                        -                        62,215               (62,215)              

Total Expenditures -                        -                        62,215               (62,215)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        21,000               (22,606)              (43,606)              

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        21,000               (22,606)              (43,606)              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 303,537             303,537             303,537             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 303,537$           324,537$           280,931$           (43,606)$            
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TREE MITIGATION FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$                      10,000$             -$                      (10,000)$            
Charges for services -                        -                        10,728               10,728               
Use of money and property -                        2,000                 3,315                 1,315                 

Total Revenues -                        12,000               14,043               2,043                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Community enhancements -                        45,000               59,005               (14,005)              

Total Expenditures -                        45,000               59,005               (14,005)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (33,000)              (44,962)              (11,962)              

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (33,000)              (44,962)              (11,962)              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 99,446               99,446               99,446               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 99,446$             66,446$             54,484$             (11,962)$            

115



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PARK FACILITIES DEVELOPMENT FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental -$                      -$                      38,654$             38,654$             
Charges for services -                        60,000               -                        (60,000)              
Use of money and property -                        750                    3,389                 2,639                 

Total Revenues -                        60,750               42,043               (18,707)              

Expenditures:
Current:

Community enhancements -                        -                        41,962               (41,962)              

Total Expenditures -                        -                        41,962               (41,962)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        60,750               81                      (60,669)              

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        60,750               81                      (60,669)              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 122,277             122,277             122,277             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 122,277$           183,027$           122,358$           (60,669)$            
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
TRANSIT DEVELOPMENT FEES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Licenses and permits -$                      58,677$             21,335$             (37,342)$            
Use of money and property -                        3,600                 1,985                 (1,615)                

Total Revenues -                        62,277               23,320               (38,957)              

Expenditures:
Capital outlay -                        30,000               -                        30,000               

Total Expenditures -                        30,000               -                        30,000               

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        32,277               23,320               (8,957)                

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        32,277               23,320               (8,957)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated 72,244               72,244               72,244               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 72,244$             104,521$           95,564$             (8,957)$              
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
OTHER GRANTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 44,776$             44,776$             89,385$             44,609$             

Total Revenues 44,776               44,776               89,385               44,609               

Expenditures:
Current:

Economic development -                        -                        11,433               (11,433)              
Community enhancements 70,311               70,311               77,952               (7,641)                

Total Expenditures 70,311               70,311               89,385               (19,074)              

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (25,535)              (25,535)              -                        25,535               

Net Change in Fund Balance (25,535)              (25,535)              -                        25,535               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year, as restated -                        -                        -                        -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (25,535)$            (25,535)$            -$                      25,535$             
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ZONE 1
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      10,523$             10,523$             -$                      
Use of money and property -                        -                        1,033                 1,033                 

Total Revenues -                        10,523               11,556               1,033                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        11,373               14,303               (2,930)                

Total Expenditures -                        11,373               14,303               (2,930)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (850)                   (2,747)                (1,897)                

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (850)                   (2,747)                (1,897)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 39,005               39,005               39,005               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 39,005$             38,155$             36,258$             (1,897)$              
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ZONE 2
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      12,413$             12,489$             76$                    
Use of money and property -                        619                    2,005                 1,386                 

Total Revenues -                        13,032               14,494               1,462                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        15,429               7,792                 7,637                 

Total Expenditures -                        15,429               7,792                 7,637                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (2,397)                6,702                 9,099                 

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (2,397)                6,702                 9,099                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 71,422               71,422               71,422               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 71,422$             69,025$             78,124$             9,099$               
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ZONE 3
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      6,550$               6,550$               -$                      
Use of money and property -                        -                        19                      19                      

Total Revenues -                        6,550                 6,569                 19                      

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        8,688                 10,228               (1,540)                

Total Expenditures -                        8,688                 10,228               (1,540)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (2,138)                (3,659)                (1,521)                

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (2,138)                (3,659)                (1,521)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (3,556)                (3,556)                (3,556)                -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (3,556)$              (5,694)$              (7,215)$              (1,521)$              
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT ZONE 4
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      4,718$               4,739$               21$                    
Use of money and property -                        -                        14                      14                      

Total Revenues -                        4,718                 4,753                 35                      

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        8,693                 9,480                 (787)                   

Total Expenditures -                        8,693                 9,480                 (787)                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (3,975)                (4,727)                (752)                   

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in -                        4,000                 -                        4,000                 

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) -                        4,000                 -                        (4,000)                

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        25                      (4,727)                (4,752)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (7,238)                (7,238)                (7,238)                -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (7,238)$              (7,213)$              (11,965)$            (4,752)$              
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 98-01
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      10,640$             10,640$             -$                      
Use of money and property -                        600                    4,139                 3,539                 

Total Revenues -                        11,240               14,779               3,539                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        5,796                 10,494               (4,698)                

Total Expenditures -                        5,796                 10,494               (4,698)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        5,444                 4,285                 (1,159)                

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        5,444                 4,285                 (1,159)                

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 151,452             151,452             151,452             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 151,452$           156,896$           155,737$           (1,159)$              
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 98-02
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      22,200$             22,200$             -$                      
Use of money and property -                        450                    2,705                 2,255                 

Total Revenues -                        22,650               24,905               2,255                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        17,289               17,685               (396)                   

Total Expenditures -                        17,289               17,685               (396)                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        5,361                 7,220                 1,859                 

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        5,361                 7,220                 1,859                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 101,190             101,190             101,190             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 101,190$           106,551$           108,410$           1,859$               
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 03-01
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      88,700$             88,700$             -$                      
Use of money and property -                        3,350                 26,501               23,151               

Total Revenues -                        92,050               115,201             23,151               

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        49,896               45,855               4,041                 

Total Expenditures -                        49,896               45,855               4,041                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        42,154               69,346               27,192               

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        42,154               69,346               27,192               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 953,323             953,323             953,323             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 953,323$           995,477$           1,022,669$        27,192$             
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 98-02 ZONE 2
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      16,288$             16,288$             -$                      
Use of money and property -                        100                    653                    553                    

Total Revenues -                        16,388               16,941               553                    

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        17,540               14,484               3,056                 

Total Expenditures -                        17,540               14,484               3,056                 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (1,152)                2,457                 3,609                 

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (1,152)                2,457                 3,609                 

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 26,291               26,291               26,291               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 26,291$             25,139$             28,748$             3,609$               
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
ASSESSMENT DISTRICT 03-01 ZONE 2
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      20,354$             19,260$             (1,094)$              
Use of money and property -                        500                    2,831                 2,331                 

Total Revenues -                        20,854               22,091               1,237                 

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        26,568               27,262               (694)                   

Total Expenditures -                        26,568               27,262               (694)                   

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (5,714)                (5,171)                543                    

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (5,714)                (5,171)                543                    

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 98,057               98,057               98,057               -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 98,057$             92,343$             92,886$             543$                  
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
LIGHTING ASSESSMENT DISTRICT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Charges for services -$                      351,977$           349,998$           (1,979)$              
Use of money and property -                        -                        1,000                 1,000                 

Total Revenues -                        351,977             350,998             (979)                   

Expenditures:
Current:

Public ways and facilities -                        432,075             434,861             (2,786)                

Total Expenditures -                        432,075             434,861             (2,786)                

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures -                        (80,098)              (83,863)              (3,765)                

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in -                        75,000               -                        75,000               

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) -                        75,000               -                        (75,000)              

Net Change in Fund Balance -                        (5,098)                (83,863)              (78,765)              

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (55,872)              (55,872)              (55,872)              -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (55,872)$            (60,970)$            (139,735)$          (78,765)$            
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
STREET
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental 3,168,749$       3,168,749$       1,785,844$       (1,382,905)$      

Total Revenues 3,168,749         3,168,749         1,785,844         (1,382,905)        

Expenditures:
Capital outlay 3,168,799         3,168,799         1,790,216         1,378,583         

Total Expenditures 3,168,799         3,168,799         1,790,216         1,378,583         

Over (Under) Expenditures (50)                    (50)                    (4,372)               (4,322)               

Net Change in Fund Balance (50)                    (50)                    (4,372)               (4,322)               

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year (15,045)             (15,045)             (15,045)             -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year (15,095)$           (15,095)$           (19,417)$           (4,322)$             

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
MEASURE A CONSTRUCTION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Use of money and property 4,500$              4,500$              37,615$            33,115$            
Miscellaneous 539,400            539,400            494,202            (45,198)             

Total Revenues 543,900            543,900            531,817            (12,083)             

Expenditures:
Public ways and facilities -                        -                        297,019            (297,019)           
Capital outlay -                        -                        215,722            (215,722)           

Total Expenditures -                        -                        512,741            (512,741)           

Over (Under) Expenditures 543,900            543,900            19,076              (524,824)           

Net Change in Fund Balance 543,900            543,900            19,076              (524,824)           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 1,326,896         1,326,896         1,326,896         -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,870,796$       1,870,796$       1,345,972$       (524,824)$         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT CAPITAL PROJECT FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Expenditures:
Economic development -$                      -$                      20,146$            (20,146)$           
Community ehancements -                        -                        6,567                (6,567)               

Total Expenditures -                        -                        26,713              (26,713)             

Over (Under) Expenditures -                        -                        (26,713)             (26,713)             

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in 25,000              25,000              -                        (25,000)             

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 25,000              25,000              -                        (25,000)             

Net Change in Fund Balance 25,000              25,000              (26,713)             (51,713)             

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 446,287            446,287            446,287            -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 471,287$          471,287$          419,574$          (51,713)$           

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY CAPITAL REPLACEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Variance with
 Final Budget

Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

Revenues:
Licenses and permits -$                      -$                      32,451$            32,451$            
Use of money and property 2,500                2,500                22,156              19,656              

Total Revenues 2,500                2,500                54,607              52,107              

Expenditures:
General government -                        -                        18,194              (18,194)             
Public safety -                        -                        160,697            (160,697)           
Culture and recreation -                        -                        24,027              (24,027)             
Community enhancements -                        -                        14,032              (14,032)             
Capital outlay 179,000            179,000            272,196            (93,196)             

Total Expenditures 179,000            179,000            489,146            (310,146)           

Over (Under) Expenditures (176,500)           (176,500)           (434,539)           (258,039)           

Other Financing Sources(Uses):
Transfers in 664,225            240,000            -                        (240,000)           
Proceeds from sale of capital asset -                        -                        32,181              32,181              

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 664,225            240,000            32,181              (207,819)           

Net Change in Fund Balance 487,725            63,500              (402,358)           (465,858)           

Fund Balances, Beginning of Year 928,551            928,551            928,551            -                        

Fund Balances, End of Year 1,416,276$       992,051$          526,193$          (465,858)$         

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
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CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2019

Totals
Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 10,397$            30,665$            41,062$            

Total Assets 10,397$            30,665$            41,062$            

Liabilities:
Due to external parties/other agencies 10,397$            30,665$            41,062$            

Total Liabilities 10,397$            30,665$            41,062$            

Fire Capital 
Facilities Fee STA Fees

133



CITY OF CITRUS HEIGHTS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2019

Balance Balance
July 1, 2018 Additions Deductions June 30, 2019

Fire Capital Facilities Fee

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 1,205$             9,192$        -$                10,397$         

Total Assets 1,205$             9,192$        -$                10,397$         

Liabilities:
Due to external parties/other agencies 1,205$             9,192$        -$                10,397$         

Total Liabilities 1,205$             9,192$        -$                10,397$         

STA Fees

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 20,689$           9,976$        -$                30,665$         

Total Assets 20,689$           9,976$        -$                30,665$         

Liabilities:
Due to external parties/other agencies 20,689$           9,976$        -$                30,665$         

Total Liabilities 20,689$           9,976$        -$                30,665$         

Totals - All Agency Funds

Assets:
Pooled cash and investments 21,894$           19,168$      -$                41,062$         

Total Assets 21,894$           19,168$      -$                41,062$         

Liabilities:
Due to external parties/other agencies 21,894$           19,168$      -$                41,062$         

Total Liabilities 21,894$           19,168$      -$                41,062$         
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Page(s)

Financial Trends 137-141

Revenue Capacity 142-147

Debt Capacity 148-150

Demographic and Economic Information 151-152

Operating Information 153-155

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the City's financial activities take place.

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the City's financial report relates to the services the City

provides and the activities it performs.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive annual

financial reports for the relevant year. 

STATISTICAL SECTION

This part of the City of Citrus Heights' comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information as a context for

understanding what the information in the financial statements, footnotes, and required supplementary information says

about the City's overall financial health.

Contents

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the

City's financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the City's ability to

generate revenues. Property taxes, sales and use taxes, charges for services, licenses,

permits and fees and intergovernmental revenue are the City's most significant

revenue sources.

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the affordability of the

City's current levels of outstanding debt and the City's ability to issue additional debt

in the future.
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City of Citrus Heights, California
Direct and Overlapping Sales Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year City Sacramento State of Total
Ended June 30 Direct Rate County STA Measure A California Sales Tax Rate

2010 1.00 0.25 0.50 7.00 8.75%
2011 1.00 0.25 0.50 7.00 8.75%
2012 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.00 7.75%
2013 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.25 8.00%
2014 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.25 8.00%
2015 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.25 8.00%
2016 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.25 8.00%
2017 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.00 7.75%
2018 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.00 7.75%
2019 1.00 0.25 0.50 6.00 7.75%

Source:  California State Board of Equalization
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